
Board of Directors’ Briefing Book 

September 26, 2025

Sara Innamorato 
County Executive 
Allegheny County 

Ed Gainey 
Mayor 

City of Pittsburgh 

David J. Malone 
Chair 

Building a thriving workforce for the Pittsburgh region. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

David J. Malone, Chairman 
Chairman and CEO, Gateway Financial 

Barcaskey, Rich 
Executive Director 
Constructors Association of 
Western PA 

Bey, Barata 
President 
African American Chamber of 
Commerce 

Bey, Jmar 
President 
South Hilltop Men’s Group 

Bullock, Dr. Quintin 
President, Community College of 
Allegheny County 

Caplan, Debra 
Executive in Residence 
The Forbes Funds 

Casoli, Rich 
President 
Beemac Trucking 

Coplan, David A. 
Executive Director 
Human Services Center Mon Valley 

Dalton, Erin 
Director 
Allegheny County DHS 

Dozier, Clarence 
Vice President, Safety, 
Sustainability, and Fleet 
Maintenance 
FedEx 

Gaudio, Brian 
CEO 
Module 

Ellsworth, Laura 
Partner4Work Vice Chair 
Partner in-Charge of Global 
Community Service 
Jones Day 

Gittlen, Ike  
Representative  
United Steelworkers 

Gonzalez, Gabriella 
Program Officer 

Richard King Mellon Foundation 

Harris, Carey 
Chief Executive Officer 
Literacy Pittsburgh 

Holt, Tim 
Vice President, Human Resources 
UPMC Insurance Services Division 

Houser, Crystal 
Director, PA Department of Labor & 
Industry 

Bureau of Workforce Partnerships 
and Operations 

Huey, Terry 
Director 
Office of Vocational Rehabilitation 

Kelly, Darrin 
Partner4Work Secretary 
President 
Allegheny/Fayette Central Labor 
Council, AFL-CIO 

LaVallee, Dan 
Senior Director, Social Impact 
UPMC Health Plan 

Massaro, Steve 
Partner4Work Treasurer 
President 
Massaro Construction Group 

Mazza, Steve 
Council Representative 
KML Regional Council of 
Carpenters 

McEvilly, Katherine 

US Head of Human Resources 
Vice President 
Covestro 

McLaughlin, Caitlin 
Chief People Person 
LaFayette Square 

Mendoza, Brandon 
Public Policy Executive 
Master Builders’ Association 

Nobers, Jeff 
Executive Director 
Builders Guild of Western PA 

Nunez, Nadyli 
Executive Director 

Ascender 

Rendulic, Mark 
Market President 

Citizens Bank 

Russell, Alexis 
Owner 
Russell General Contracting 

Stewart, Joshua 
Senior Vice President, Head of 
Talent Acquisition and Outreach 
PNC 

Thomas, John 
Chief Financial Officer 
ECHO Realty 

Valentin, Marisol 
Executive Director 

McAuley Ministries Foundation 

Washington, Dr. Nancy 
Director, Allegheny Housing 
Rehabilitation Corporation 

Williamson, Sam 
Chair 
Urban Redevelopment Authority 
Western PA Area Leader, 32BJ 
Service Employees International 
Union 



PAGE 

1 

3 
8 
10 
15 
17 

PARTNER4WORK BRIEFING BOOK 
September 26, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA 

MEETING MATERIALS 
Minutes from Board Meeting, June 27, 2025   
Minutes from Executive Committee June 13, 2025 
Draft Gift Acceptance Policy
Dashboard Report 
Program Updates
Program Data Supplement 25



     Partner4Work 
Board of Directors 

8:30 to 10:00 a.m. September 26, 2025 
Via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84759650749?pwd=Xb7rSV00ab75otixM0BjIhosatEP5t.1 

1. Welcome and roll call David Malone, Chair 

2. General Business – Consent Agenda
ACTION:

o Approve the minutes of the June 27, 2025 Partner4Work board meeting and the June
13, 2025 Executive Committee meeting.

o Accept all funds since the last Executive Committee meeting
▪ CDBG year 50 - $450,000 for Learn and Earn 2025
▪ CDBG year 51 - $450,000 for Learn and Earn 2026
▪ PA CareerLink® Awareness Funding - $40,000 for awareness events
▪ Taco Bell Foundation - $48,000 for Learn and Earn
▪ University of Pittsburgh - $13,000
▪ Homeless Children’s Education Fund - $29,937.60

o Approve updates to policies:
▪ Employee Handbook
▪ Gift Acceptance Policy

o Approve contracts
▪ Build Back Better

● Re:Build TPS I, LLC $150,000 BBB 
▪ EARN/SNAP

● Goodwill of Southwest PA: $100,000 EARN/SNAP 
o $100,000 amendment results in $170,764 total value*

 Healthcare Apprenticeship 
● UPMC Presbyterian Shadyside:  $372,000 Healthcare RAP 

Informational Only – Contract Activity presented for informational purposes only per 
Partner4Work’s procurement policy; no board action required. 
▪ Green Building Alliance:     $25,000 BPI 
▪ PGH Chapter Nat’l Tooling & Machining Fdtn:  $6,790  ABA 
▪ University of Pittsburgh Physicians:    $40,000 PASmart/Healthcare 

ABA 
▪ Phase 4 Learning Center: $90,356.07 School2Work 
▪ Boys & Girls Clubs of W. PA: $90,356.07 School2Work 
▪ DePaul School: $50,000 PASmart/Healthcare 

ABA
▪ Operation Better Block: $55,000 YARP 
▪ PASSHE Foundation: $25,000 IP Financial 
▪ Dynamic Workforce Solutions: $32,214.76 Opioid 

1



▪ Near Earth Autonomy, Inc. $12,300 BBB 
▪ Global Wordsmiths LLC $25,000 EARN/WR 
▪ Goodwill of Southwestern PA $150,000 DCW UPMC 
▪ Q&A Consulting and Training $20,000 ARC/Inspire 
▪ Coop & Hall Construction $30,000 Clean Energy 
▪ Allegheny County Airport Authority $24,000 WIOA Adult 
▪ Mentoring Partnership of Southwestern PA $52,500 DCW UPMC 
▪ Q&A Consulting and Training $33,350 Childcare DCI 

3. Committee Reports
● Governance and Learn & Earn         Debra Caplan, Chair 
● Program Optimization Committee     Cat McLaughlin, Chair 

4. Title II Report      Carey Harris, CEO Literacy Pittsburgh 

5. CEO’s report         Robert Cherry, CEO 
• Federal and State landscape

6. Other Business

7. Open Forum and Public Comment
Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes

8. Adjournment

2



Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

Minutes of Partner4Work Board of Directors’ Meeting 
8:30 a.m. June 27, 2025 

Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

Board Members Present 

Dave Malone, chair  

Barãta Bey 

Jmar Bey  

Dr. Quintin Bullock  

Debra Caplan  

Dave Coplan  

Erin Dalton 

Clarence Dozier  

Carey Harris  

Tim Holt  

Crystal Houser  

Terry Huey 

Ike Gittlen  

Gabriella Gonzalez 

Dan Lavallee  

Steven Massaro  

Steve Mazza 

Cat McLaughlin 

Nadyli Nuñez  

Mark Rendulic  

Alexis Russell  

Joshua Stewart 

John Thomas 

Marisol Valentin 

Nancy Washington 

Board Members Absent 

Will Allen 

Rich Barcaskey   

Rich Casoli 

Brian Gaudio 

Laura Ellsworth  

Darrin Kelly 

Katherine McEvilly  

Jeff Nobers 

Sam Williamson 

Guests Present 

Rose Alexander-Staples (PA CareerLink®) 

Yurron Arrington (Learn & Earn presenter)  

Amy Blystone (PA CareerLink®) 

Jeff Dick (L&I)  

Christine Grigsby (Equus) 

Melissa Handlovich (PA CareerLink®)  

Denise Jones (Youth Enrichment Serv.) 

Arnisha Keyes (PA CareerLink®)  

Chester Lampman (L&I) 

Alexis McCartney (PA CareerLink®) 

Paula Mendoza (Learn & Earn presenter) 

Leo Morrow (PA CareerLink®)  

Joshua Stewart (Phase 4 Learning Center) 

Chris Upchurch (PA CareerLink®) 

TaMaya Wells (Learn & Earn presenter) 

Staff Present  

Rob Cherry, CEO 

Kristin Kramer  

Brian Kreit 

Markese Long 

Susie Puskar  

Dave Tinker  

Dr. Carl Wesley 

LaDonna Woods  

Board Meeting Minutes 

3



Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

Chair Malone called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. and announced a quorum present. A link to the agenda 

was posted on the Partner4Work website. 

• Staff, board members, and guests joining remotely were asked to acknowledge their participation in the

chat feature.

CONSENT AGENDA 

No one wished to discuss any item in more detail for separate treatment. 

ACTION:   

• Approve the minutes of the March 28, 2025 Partner4Work board meeting and the March 12, 2025

Executive Committee meeting.

• Accept all funds since the last Executive Committee meeting

o $500,000, RK Mellon Foundation

o $400,000, Supporting Healthcare Sector through Apprenticeships

o $400,000, Supporting IT Sector through Apprenticeships

o $250,000, Schools to Work

o $35,000, Chicago Women in the Trades

o $125,000, JP Morgan Chase Foundation

o $75,000, The Pittsburgh Foundation

o $65,000, The Heinz Endowments

o $53,000, Citizen’s Bank

o $25,000, The Buhl Foundation

o $609,571, SNAP Jets

o $42,500, ARC ARISE

• Approve updates to policies

o WIOA Adult & Dislocated Worker Policy Guide

o WIOA Youth Policy Guide

o TANF YDP Policy Guide

• Approve contracts

o WIOA

▪ Dynamic Workforce Solutions $2,200,000 Adult/DW 

▪ Jewish Family & Community Services $120,000 Adult/DW 

▪ Goodwill of Southwestern Pennsylvania $350,000 Adult 

▪ Auberle $600,000 Youth 

▪ Goodwill of Southwestern Pennsylvania $276,000 Youth 

▪ Phase 4 Learning Center $1,650,000 Youth 

▪ Pittsburgh Public Schools $184,000 Youth 

▪ Trade Institute of Pittsburgh $200,000 Youth 

o TANF

▪ Auberle $122,498 Youth 

▪ Bloomfield-Garfield Corp $171,000 Youth 

▪ Boys & Girls Club of Western PA $150,000 Youth 

▪ Community Empowerment Assn $80,000 Youth 

▪ Crossroads Foundation $120,256.41 Youth 

▪ Goodwill of Southwestern Pennsylvania $129,035 Youth 

▪ Human Services Center Mon Valley $518,000 Youth 

▪ Jewish Family & Community Services $100,000 Youth 

▪ Latino Community Center $80,000  Youth 

▪ Neighborhood Learning Alliance $192,000 Youth 

4



Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

▪ Youth Enrichment Services $300,000 Youth 

▪ City Charter High School $38,000 Youth 

o Industry Recognized Training Programs (IRTP)

▪ APRI $140,000   

▪ Boys & Girls Club $100,864.05 

▪ Community Kitchen of Pittsburgh $75,000   

▪ FortyX80 $40,000   

▪ German American Chamber of Commerce $60,000   

▪ New Century Careers $105,000   

▪ Per Scholas $80,000   

▪ Phase 4 $38,174   

▪ PGH Gateways $245,000   

▪ Trade Institute of Pittsburgh $105,000   

▪ UPMC Freedom House $265,840  

o PACL RSA

▪ Arbor E & T, LLC dba Equus Workforce Solutions up to $511,500 RSA 

o Other

▪ Hear Foundation $115,000  

▪ Phase 4 Learning Center (School to Work) up to $120,000 

▪ Correlation One (Supporting IT Sector thru RAPs) $294,250   

▪ UPMC - EVS RAP $30,000   

▪ UPMC – Dietary Tech RAP $30,000   

▪ UPMC - Ophthalmic RAP $40,000  

▪ Energy Innovation Center Institute $290,000  

▪ Dynamic Workforce Solutions (CNI) $72,000  

▪ German American Chamber of Commerce $300,000  

The consent agenda was approved on a motion by Debra Caplan, seconded by Dr. Quintin Bullock. 

Debra Caplan, Dan LaValle, and Tim Holt abstained from the UPMC contract vote; Debra Caplan, Laura 

Ellsworth, Dr. Quintin Bullock, Dave Malone, and Erin Dalton abstained from the HEAR Foundation 

contract vote; Dr. Quintin Bullock abstained from the Buhl Foundation contract vote; and Dave Coplan 

abstained from the Human Services Center contract vote.  There were no objections. 

GENERAL BUSINESS 

• WIOA Local and Regional Plans

On a motion by Tim Holt, seconded by Dr. Quintin Bullock, the PY2025 - PY2028 Local WIOA Plan for 

the Allegheny County and City of Pittsburgh Workforce Development Areas and the Regional WIOA 

Plan for Southwest Pennsylvania were approved without objection or abstention. 

Audit and Finance Report 

Kristin Kramer, CFO, walked through the 2025-2026 draft Partner4Work budget and outlined key financial 

shifts. There is an overall $1 million decrease in projected income, driven largely by a drop in WIOA funding—

most significantly in youth programs, which saw a $720,000 decline. Despite this, no youth programs were 

eliminated; instead, funding was scaled back by approximately 10% as part of a broader effort to right-size 

allocations. TANF adult funding increased with the incorporation of PA CareerLink® centers, while the sunset of 

the Pathways Home and Ex-Offender grants contributed to a $400,000 drop in the priority populations line. 

Personnel costs decreased by $163,000 despite a 4% staff COLA and raise, due to a consolidation of staff 

5



Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

positions. Contracted services rose by $446,000 to support in-house Learn & Earn payroll operations, 

temporary hires, and a new payroll system. Overall, direct program expenses experienced the most significant 

reductions, while strategic investments continued in areas like sector strategies and a refreshed organizational 

plan. 

On a motion by Tim Holt, seconded by Carey Harris, the FY 2025-2026 annual Partner4Work budget 

was approved as presented without objection or abstention. 

CEO Report 

Rob Cherry redirected his CEO report to focus on urgent federal legislative developments that could 

significantly affect workforce funding and operations. He outlined looming changes like the potential shift of 

Perkins funds to high schools (away from post-secondary institutions), proposed cuts to Pell Grants, and the 

risk of funding consolidation through block grants. He emphasized the impact of these changes on local 

institutions and services, warning that funding reductions could come even as more people are pushed into the 

system due to new work requirements for Medicaid and SNAP. 

Susie Puskar provided context on the federal budget process, reconciliation procedures, and details of H.R.1, 

including tax changes, workforce policy shifts, and controversial restructuring proposals. She also covered the 

Trump administration’s budget plan, which proposes deep cuts to the Departments of Labor and Education and 

eliminates key workforce programs. Cherry concluded by highlighting Partner4Work’s proactive steps—such 

as contingency planning for Job Corps closures, launching new funding proposals, and advocating in DC—to 

stay ahead of these changes. 

Program Optimization Committee Report 

Cat McLaughlin reported that the committee has reviewed and approved a slate of contract renewals and 

funding recommendations across multiple workforce programs, including WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker, 

Youth, TANF Youth, and industry training initiatives, most of which align with the WIOA 4-Year Cycle. The team 

is closely monitoring a projected 30% reduction in WIOA allocations for Program Year 2025, with the most 

significant impact anticipated in 2026 if further cuts occur; mitigation strategies are already in development. 

The co-location of EARN and Work Ready programs at PA CareerLink ® is proceeding as scheduled for July 1, 

alongside a re-envisioning of the PA CareerLink® Operator role to enhance system coordination and user 

experience. Additionally, the newly launched Cybersecure Pittsburgh initiative aims to serve 60 youth by 2027 

through a pre-apprenticeship tech pipeline supported by several community partners. Lastly, efforts continue to 

identify and address geographic service gaps, especially in Pittsburgh neighborhoods and select county 

regions, to ensure equitable access. 

Learn & Earn Committee Report 

Debra Caplan announced the launch of the 2025 Learn & Earn summer program with a new three-tiered 

structure which surpassed its placement goal by enrolling 940 youth across Allegheny County and Pittsburgh. 

Partner4Work now serves as the employer of record, streamlining payroll operations and easing administrative 

burdens for providers. Program priorities this year include youth retention, high-quality worksite standards, 

timely payroll, and real-time provider support. Youth participants shared powerful testimonials about how the 

program helped them build confidence, develop professional skills, and access meaningful career 

experiences—such as internships with the Pittsburgh Penguins. However, they also emphasized the need for 

broader outreach to high schools and college campuses to ensure more students are aware of the opportunity. 

Longtime program partners, such as Phase 4 Learning Center and Youth Enrichment Services, praised the 

program's impact and expressed interest in expanding service capacity to reach more youth. Board members 

were encouraged to attend upcoming end-of-summer events and continue fostering connections that help 

scale the program’s reach and outcomes. 

6



Zoom and Centre City Tower, 650 Smithfield Street 

Open Forum and Public Comment   

During the open forum portion of the board meeting, concerns were raised about the severe financial strain 

facing higher education institutions and the need to align college training programs with employer needs, 

particularly by having employers support job-relevant training. Additionally, the broader economic risks tied to 

federal policy changes, including potential cuts to afterschool programs, transit funding, Medicaid, and social 

services could severely impact low-income families and local economies. 

There was no public comment.  

The meeting adjourned at 9:52 am on a motion from Dave Malone. 

7



Executive Committee Minutes from June 13, 2025 

Attending: Joe Belechak, Debra Caplan, Laura Ellsworth, Darrin Kelly, Cat McLaughlin, Steve Massaro 
Absent: Erin Dalton, Dave Malone 
Staff Present: Rob Cherry, Susie Puskar, Carl Wesley, Brian Kreit, Dave Tinker, Kristin Kramer, LaDonna Woods 
Others Present: none 

The meeting was called to order at 8:01 a.m. with a quorum present. 

Consent Agenda 
Consent agenda items included approval of minutes, accepting grants, and awarded contracts. On a motion by 
Laura Ellsworth, the agenda was approved as presented.  Debra Caplan abstained from UPMC and HEAR 
Foundation contract approval. Laura Ellsworth abstained from HEAR Foundation contract approval. There 
were no objections. 

Audit and Finance Updates 
Kristin Kramer provided the finance report by reviewing the budget and dashboard report. Partner4Work holds 
$8.74 million in cash and a timing-driven, year-to-date operating deficit of $2.6 million that should close as 
Learn & Earn reimbursements are received. The balanced FY 25-26 budget of $29.9 million, about 3 percent 
below the current year, reflects a $980K decline in WIOA formula funds, offset partly by higher Adult/TANF 
allocations, while savings from lower WIOA Youth, Dislocated Worker and Priority Populations spending are 
redirected to strategic contracts and internships. Streamlining Partner4Work staffing positions has left more 
resources for direct program delivery. The audit and finance committee have been working to develop 
contingency plans for a potential decrease in federal funding and are prepared for such instances. On a motion 
by Debra Caplan, seconded by Cat McLaughlin, the budget will advance to the full board for approval. 

Learn & Earn & Updates 
Debra Caplan reports that the 2025 Learn & Earn summer program is on track. Tier III youth begin June 16, 
with Tiers I & II starting June 23. The initiative has already placed 932 of its 900-plus target participants and 
expects additional placements pending the receipt of any outstanding funding requests. Of 2,901 applications 
to date, 1,393 youth (814 city, 579 county) are confirmed eligible; 396 are under review, 1,108 are incomplete, 
and 51 were ineligible—showing strong demand across Allegheny County and Pittsburgh. Partner4Work has 
become the employer of record, hiring payroll staff and onboarding youth in ADP to guarantee prompt pay. 
Orientation is underway, and summer priorities include boosting youth retention through a new three-tier 
model, ensuring high-quality worksites, delivering on-time payroll, and providing real-time support to 
community providers. Learn & Earn participants will share their experiences at the upcoming full board 
meeting. 

Program Optimization Updates 
Cat McLaughlin provided updates from the Program Optimization Committee. (POC). Since the last meeting, 
the POC has approved contract renewals and funding recommendations across Adult, Dislocated Worker, 
Youth, TANF Youth Development, and industry training programs, advancing most through the board’s consent 
agenda; meanwhile it is modeling mitigation strategies in response to a projected 30% cut to WIOA allocations 
for PY 25 that could impact PY 26. EARN and Work Ready programs will be co-located at PA CareerLink® sites 
by July 1, and the committee has begun redesigning the Operator role to enhance system coordination and 
customer experience. On the innovation front, CyberSecure Pittsburgh, a schools-to-work pre-apprenticeship 
initiative, will build a tech pipeline for 60 youth by 2027 in partnership with Urban Pathways, Phase 4, and Boys 
& Girls Club. Equity efforts stay focused on closing geographic service gaps in the Northside, Hilltop, Carrick HS, 
and the county’s Clairton and Moon areas. 

8



CEO Report 
Rob Cherry provided the CEO report. Partner4Work secured a $500K, 18-month Regional Advanced 
Manufacturing Partnership (RAMP) planning grant to grow the advanced-manufacturing workforce in 
partnership with employers in the area, creating a flexible model that can be retuned for future industry 
reinvestment.  
The U.S. Department of Labor’s decision to pause operations at Job Corps puts 394 currently enrolled young 
people at risk. About half (188) of Job Corps participants reside on-site; about 50 of these individuals lack 
stable housing. 165 staff may be affected. P4W, CCAC, DHS and other partners are working together to respond 
swiftly, pending a court hearing next week. PA CareerLink® is working to keep services flowing and to 
coordinate with other Job Corps centers on participants who might return to Allegheny County.  
Looking ahead, federal budget debates could shrink WIOA resources if a “Making America Skilled Again” block-
grant replaces them. Potential provisions on SNAP, work-study, and Medicaid may add caseload pressure and 
administrative hurdles. P4W is proactively meeting with legislators in DC and local partners to advocate for 
policy changes. A state-level block grant could offer more flexibility than the current system allows. It was 
suggested that P4W Leadership craft talking points so board members can speak with one voice in upcoming 
advocacy conversations. 

Operationally, the capacity to serve clients at PA CareerLink® is stronger after integrating TANF and EARN 
clients.  

There will be a special Executive Session scheduled later to discuss confidential questions. 

There was no public comment. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:57 a.m. 

9



 DRAFT GIFT ACCEPTANCE POLICY 

Purpose 

Partner4Work seeks and accepts donations throughout the year to support our mission and programs. 
This Gift Acceptance Policy is designed to help board and staff members in the process of accepting 
appropriate gifts that will benefit the organization and its programs.  

Background 

A Gift Acceptance Policy is a common policy for nonprofit organizations who accept donations. It 
serves as a framework to guide the organization in determining which gifts to accept or decline, 
ensuring alignment with its mission, values, and operational capacity. It will also assist board and staff 
members in avoiding gifts that go against commonwealth or federal law. 

Scope / Affected Parties  
This policy covers all donations to our organization. Partner4Work does not provide legal or tax advice 

to donors. Donors are encouraged to consult with their own legal and tax advisors regarding the tax-

deductibility of donations. 

Definitions of Key Terms 

• ACH/EFT - Automated Clearing House / Electronic Funds Transfer.
o ACH is one type of EFT. ACH is a way to directly deposit funds into a bank account, e.g.,

direct deposit.
o EFT is the umbrella term for moving money electronically.

• Donor Advised Funds (DAFs) - is like a charitable investment account. Donors put money (or
other assets, like stock) into the account, receive an immediate tax deduction, and then
recommend grants to charities from the fund over time.

• In-kind gift – a donation that is not a gift of cash.

• Planned Gifts – Also known as legacy gifts, are donations that supporters arrange now but that
typically benefit the organization in the future—often as part of their estate planning.
Charitable bequests and naming charities as a beneficiary of a life insurance policy are the most
common planned gifts. It can also encompass more sophisticated financial vehicles.

• QCD – Qualified Charitable Distribution – is a way for people who are age 70½ or older to
donate money directly from their Individual Retirement Account (IRA) to a qualified charity.

10



Policy / Procedure 

Types of Gifts Partner4Work Accepts – Cash, Checks, Stocks, ACH/EFT, In-kind gifts, Planned or Legacy 
Gifts, Gifts from Donor Advised Funds, Gifts from Qualified Charitable Distributions, and Real Property. 
This list is not meant to be exhaustive but rather lists common types of donations.  

Types of Gifts Partner4Work Does Not Accept – 

• Gifts from illegal activities, including those that may be legal in Pennsylvania but not at the
federal level, e.g., gifts from medical marijuana-related companies, will not be accepted.

• Partner4Work does not have a cryptocurrency account; therefore, Partner4Work cannot accept

a cryptocurrency donation.

• Additionally, in-kind gifts and gifts of real property that would not benefit the organization or
its programs will not be accepted.

• Gifts that may cause a conflict of interest for staff or for Partner4Work will not be accepted.

• Also, gifts with restrictions that are too burdensome for Partner4Work to comply with or those
that could put Partner4Work’s 501(c)(3) designation in jeopardy will not be accepted.

• This list is also not meant to be exhaustive but rather lists common types of donations.

Cash and Checks, ACH/EFT, Donor Advised Funds (DAFs), and Qualified Charitable Distributions 
(QCDs) – Gifts of cash, including cash and checks, ACH/EFT, DAFs, and QCDs, will be accepted and 
deposited into Partner4Work’s bank account. Unless otherwise indicated by the donor, gifts of cash 
will be used to support general operating expenses. Fund Development staff must work with the CFO 
for proper recording of the gifts. 

Stocks – Unless otherwise directed by the Partner4Work board, all gifts of stock will be sold once 
Partner4Work takes possession of the stock. The funds from the sale of the stock will be used for 
general operating unless otherwise indicated by the donor. 

Planned Gifts aka Legacy Gifts - Gifts of cash from a planned gift will be accepted and deposited into 
Partner4Work’s bank account. Unless otherwise indicated by the donor, gifts of cash will be used to 

support general operating expenses. Non-cash gifts from a planned gift will be accepted in accordance 
with the paragraphs in this policy related to the type of gift. 

In-kind gifts – In-kind gifts will be accepted by Partner4Work only if the item or service being donated 
may be used by the organization and or the program partners, e.g., donation of new hand tools for 
construction programs. 

Partner4Work may not set the value of in-kind gifts. Any in-kind gift must be valued by the donor. If 

11



the in-kind gift value is more than $5,000 then the donor is responsible for getting an independent 
appraisal for the item(s) and complete IRS Form 8283. It is highly recommended that the donor have 
conversations with their own tax-advisor to maximize the benefit they may receive from donations of 
in-kind gifts. 

Real Property - On rare occasions Partner4Work may accept gifts of real estate—including residential, 
commercial, or undeveloped property—when such gifts support the mission and purposes of the 
organization and can be readily converted into liquid assets. All gifts of real property are subject to a 
thorough review to ensure that they do not expose the organization to undue risk, expense, or liability. 

Required Conditions for Acceptance of Real Property 

1. Ownership & Title
Donor must provide clear and marketable title, free of liens, mortgages, or other

encumbrances. Title insurance will be obtained at the time of transfer.
2. Environmental Review

Prior to acceptance, the organization will obtain an environmental assessment (Phase I

Environmental Site Assessment, and Phase II if warranted) to ensure the property has no

environmental contamination or hazardous waste issues. Any required environmental testing

will be at the donor’s expense unless otherwise approved.

3. Appraisal

In accordance with IRS requirements for charitable contributions of property valued over

$5,000, the donor must obtain, at their expense, a qualified independent appraisal of the

property’s fair market value (IRS Form 8283).

4. Carrying Costs

The donor must disclose any ongoing expenses related to the property (property taxes,

insurance, association dues, utilities, maintenance, etc.). The organization must agree in writing

to assume any such obligations before acceptance.

Review & Approval Process 

• All prospective gifts of real property will be evaluated by the staff Leadership Team with the

assistance of legal counsel, real estate professionals, and other advisors as needed.

• A formal recommendation will be made to the Board of Directors for final approval.

• Acceptance is contingent upon a written Gift Agreement outlining the terms of transfer,

responsibilities, and expectations.

Liquidation of Property 

• Unless otherwise determined by the Board, all real estate gifts will be sold as soon as

practicable after transfer. The net proceeds from the sale will be used in accordance with

12



the donor’s stated gift purpose, or, if unrestricted, in support of the organization’s mission. 

Special Restrictions 

Partner4Work reserves the right to decline any gift of real property if: 

• It is determined that ownership could create financial, legal, or environmental liabilities;

• The property cannot be sold in a reasonable timeframe;

• The intended use is inconsistent with the organization’s mission or strategic goals.

Naming Opportunities - Partner4Work may offer naming opportunities to recognize transformational 

support from donors or to honor individuals whose values and legacy are aligned with the 

organization’s mission and vision. Such naming opportunities shall be governed by clearly defined gift 

thresholds, approval protocols, and legal agreements. These ensure that both Partner4Work and the 

donor know the expectations related to the gift. 

• Minimum Gift Levels: Naming opportunities are contingent upon a minimum gift amount

deemed sufficient to support the named program, facility, or initiative in a meaningful and

sustainable way.

 If Partner4Work undertakes a fundraising campaign with any naming opportunities, the 

gift amounts will be listed with benefits and donation levels. 

 If the donor asks for a naming opportunity as part of the benefit of a gift, Partner4Work 

will consider the opportunity. 

• Approval Process: All naming prospects shall receive final approval from both Partner4Work’s

CEO and the Executive Committee of the Partner4Work Board of Directors. Any naming

recommendation must be approved in writing and documented in a formal Gift Agreement

prior to public solicitation or announcement.

• Alignment with Mission and Values: Names selected for recognition should reflect and uphold

the values and vision of Partner4Work, preserving institutional reputation and public trust.

Terms & Agreements for a Naming Gift – Any Naming Rights Agreement or MOU will include: 

1. Duration of Naming Rights

Naming agreements should specify the period during which the name will remain associated

with the gift (e.g., in perpetuity or for a fixed term).

2. Form of Recognition

13



The Gift Agreement should outline how and where donor names are displayed, including size, 

materials, and wording of plaques or signage, as well as textual recognition in program 

materials or digital platforms. 

3. Morals Clause / Revocation Provisions

To protect the organization’s reputation, the agreement must include a morals clause or

revocation rights. This clause empowers Partner4Work to remove or modify naming

recognition if the donor’s conduct—criminal, reputational, or otherwise—could harm

organizational credibility or stakeholder trust.

Gift Acknowledgements – It is an industry best practice to acknowledge gifts that come into our 

possession within 3-5 business days or sooner. Parnter4Work will respond to all gifts in that timeframe 

with an initial tax receipt for the donor’s records. Additional thank you letters or communications may 

be undertaken at a later time. 

Return of Philanthropic Gifts – While Partner4Work deeply values philanthropic support, the 

organization reserves the right to return or redirect any gift if it is determined that the donor's 
actions—past or present—are illegal, unethical, or fundamentally inconsistent with our mission and 
values. Such a decision may be made to preserve public trust, uphold ethical integrity, and protect the 
reputation and credibility of the organization. 

Final Note - This Gift Acceptance Policy may be amended when needed. Any amendments will be 
reviewed and approved by the Partner4Work board of directors. 

Effective Date: 
This policy becomes effective upon approval by the Board of Directors at a duly convened board 

meeting.  

Update and Revision History 

Date Description of Change 

MM/DD/YYYY First approved by Board of Directors 

14



June 30, 2025 

Dashboard Report 
Cash Flow Unrestricted and Temp Restricted Funds 

Current Assets, Liabilities & Equity 

Cash: 
Temp Restricted $6,915,301  
Unrestricted $2,063,491  

Total Cash $8,978,792                                       

Line of Credit secured by Money 
Market                     
$0 of $500,000 

Other Current 
Assets            
Prepaid Expenses  $66,016         
Prepaid Insurance  $23,788       
Unbilled Receivable $174        
Security Deposit  $6,067        
Fixed Assets Net of Depreciation $107,295        
Right of Use Asset – Operating Lease  $1,411,539   

Liabilities  
A/P $5,323,780 ($5,023,719 due to subrecipients)    Items over 90+ days:  DOJ $64,759 Paid in full in August 2025   

Accrued Vacation/Payroll  $368,590        
Accrued Contract Liability $97,203     
Right of Use Liability-Operating Lease (current & long term)$1,470,687   

Equity 

Unrestricted Net Assets $849,305        
Temp Restricted Net Assets $10,282,423**  
Net Income ($1,950,999)        

**Career Link $57,701; M&G $131,660; Sector Strat. $4,268,842; Adult TANF $3,509,731; L&E $2,314,489
This is reflective of activity through 7/1/2024 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

Unrestricted

Temp
Resricted

$5,314,003 
91%

Partner4Work Accounts 
Receivable $5,847,495

 < than 30 Days

30-60 Days

60-90 Days

 Over 90 Days

$64,759  
1%

$30,327  
1%

$438,406  
7% 

15



Dashboard Report Continued
Expense section

 Comments 

WIOA Programs 
 Youth: $10K under the prior year and $642K below budget, primarily due to decrease in number and value of provider contracts issued and underspending salary, wages &

benefits. 
 Adult: Over the prior year $345K, attributed to increased direct program costs.  Above budget by $1.45M due to additional direct program expenses and salaries and benefits.
 Dislocated Worker: Under prior year and budget by $774K and $1.5M, respectively due to provider under-enrollment and IRTP allocations.  Prior year, PA CareerLink East had

additional costs for the move to the new location.  The majority of DW funds have been transferred to adult to even out the spending trend. 

TANF Programs 
 Youth: Under the prior year by $24K and $323K under budget primarily due to direct program expenses and salaries and benefits.
 Adult: $87K above prior year despite being $220K below budget.  The shortfalls under budget are in direct services and contractual spending. 

Sector Strategies, Priority Populations and Learn & Earn 
 Sector Strategies: $2.7M increase over the previous year, but $257K under budget.  There have been significant increases under sector strategies from last quarter.  While we

had a slow start, most program picked up in the last quarter.
 Priority Populations: $1M under budget and $163K above prior year, largely due to lower-than-expected direct program spending and salary and benefits.
 Learn & Earn: $173K under budget and $643K below prior year. This program shifted formats and has brough payroll processing in-house.  Provider invoices are lower this fiscal 

year due to the reduction in contract values. Due to funding constraints, we reduced youth hours to maintain number of youth served. 

Conclusion  
The organization ended the year strongly with active program engagement, despite some budgetary variances which were mostly explainable through program shifts, and/or strategic cost 
management.  

8%

0%

13%

17%

4%
8%

20%

17%

2%
11%

Total Partner4Work Expenditures $28,122,305
Management & General

Fundraising

WIOA Youth

WIOA Adult

WIOA DLW

TANF Youth

TANF Adult

Sector Strategies

Priority Populations

Learn & Earn

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

Management &
General

WIOA Youth WIOA Adult WIOA DLW TANF Youth TANF Adult Sector
Strategies

Priority
Populations

Learn & Earn

12 Month Budget and Expense Comparison

12 Month Budget Current year (Full year of budget) Actual expenses Jul 24-June 25 Actual Expenses Jul 23-June 24

16



Advance and deliver effective, inclusive, and user-centered 

programs that build a stronger regional workforce.  

PA CareerLink ® Services: 

The PA CareerLink ® (PACL) system advanced several key initiatives this quarter, including the 

integration of TANF EARN and Work Ready (WR) providers and the successful conclusion of 

the partnership with Outside Angle. This partnership concluded with the production of an 

integration best practice toolkit for future retraining and professional development for PA 

CareerLink ® staff. 

A major highlight was the PA CareerLink ® Awareness Day at the Monroeville Convention 

Center on September 10, 2025, which brought together 56 employers, 16 service providers, and 

343 job seekers.  

Additionally, the release of the One-Stop Operator (OSO) Request for Proposals (RFP) on August 

1 and the bidders conference held on August 12, with seven organizations in attendance, set the 

stage for a strong competitive process. Proposals are due September 19. Formal review and 

recommendations are anticipated for the next board meeting, leading to an expected January 1, 

2026, start. 

Workforce Services (Title 1, Training, Year-round Youth) 

The Workforce Services (WFS) team has been restructured to better align providers with 

designated team contacts, creating clearer communication and stronger partnerships. Team 

members are engaging in cross-training to build flexibility, expand knowledge, and increase 

overall capacity, while key workflows are being streamlined to eliminate redundancies and 

improve efficiency. Together, these changes enhance service delivery, foster professional growth, 

and position the WFS team for greater impact and continued development. 

EARN/Work Ready Program: 

EARN and Work Ready providers successfully moved into both PA CareerLink ® offices  in July. 

Staff from Grant Associates and Goodwill have continued to maintain collaborative spirit and 

motivation towards comprehensive service delivery around career services, training opportunities, 

and business services. We look forward to ongoing efforts to strengthen comprehensive access 

available to our participants.  

 The PA Department of Human Services Bureau of Employment Programs (BEP) visited 

the PA CareerLink® co-located offices this month. Partner4Work program staff provided 

a presentation to BEP staff which included a high-level overview of Partner4Work’s 

efforts from planning to implementation of the integrated service delivery model that now 

exists at both offices. The staff received site tours at both locations and engaged both 

providers around new features in their services and how integration has improved 

accessibility for public benefits recipients.  

17



Additional Programs Supporting Priority Populations: 

 Pennsylvania Regional Recovery Ecosystem (ARC INSPIRE funded): Unity Recovery 

completed two virtual Recovery Friendly Workspaces trainings at the end of August.  

More than 15 organizations and over 40 staff members attended the training course, 

including the entirety of the Title 1 Dynamic Workforce Solutions staff. Each 

organization received a Recovery Friendly Workplaces certificate from Unity Recovery. 

We are thrilled at the responsiveness and commitment of these organizations to continue 

to progress in the Recovery space and are looking forward to receiving feedback and 

updates on best practice implementation provided at the training.  

 Opioid DWG: A dedicated Title 1 staff member was hired and began onboarding for this 

initiative. This staff member is required to have lived experience and a key skill set to 

meaningfully engage the residents at a number of local Residential Treatment Facilities. 

 Pittsburgh Reentry Career Services: Title 1 case managers reached their enrollment 

target of 80 for the initiative. Staff will continue to meet with enrolled and engaged 

clients to continue to provide workforce services. We are seeing steady increases in 

placement rates and additional fair chance employers who are hiring our participants. 

Learn & Earn 

The Learn & Earn program was restructured this year to move payroll in house to Partner4Work 

in an effort to alleviate cashflow issues for providers. Further, the program created three Tiers of 

experience for youth to build work readiness and occupational skills. This year, 1,370 young 

people were offered jobs through Learn & Earn. Of these, 899 accepted their role and worked  

over the summer. 

Numbers by tiers: 

• 375 participants in Tier 1 explored work readiness and built foundational skills.

• 520 participants in Tier 2 gained hands-on work experience and began shaping their

career interests.

• 20 participants in Tier 3 engaged in advanced work-based training opportunities.

In total, 21 provider organizations partnered with 142 worksites to host participants. While the 

number of worksites decreased this year, this was the result of intentional program changes 

designed to create stronger, more consistent placements.  

We provided flexibility to the Carnegie Library, to pilot their 2025 Learn and Earn activities 

beyond the summer months. Their participants will remain engaged through mid-October, 

completing the same number of hours as their peers but spread over a longer timeline.  

In 2025, Learn & Earn marked a shift: for the first time, Partner4Work served as the employer of 

record for all participants. To support this transition, the payroll team resolved onboarding and 

paycheck issues in real time, ensuring minimal disruption for youth and providers. More than 

99% of participant pays this summer were accurate. 

Learn & Earn Participants and Providers 

18



• From Summer Job to Career Steps 

One Learn & Earn participant shared that after spending the summer gaining IT and cybersecurity 

skills, they were inspired to take their learning further. Over the summer, they were introduced to 

cybersecurity concepts that at first felt overwhelming. By the end of the summer, they proudly 

shared that they could understand domains of cybersecurity they had never encountered before. 

More importantly, they walked away with a new sense of confidence and a vision for their future. 

What began as a summer placement became the spark that showed them a career in technology is 

possible and worth pursuing. They used the program experience to begin planning for their long-

term career, noting that the technical knowledge and professional exposure they gained during 

Learn & Earn gave them the confidence to continue building toward a future in technology. 

 

• New Century Careers – Career Training Success 

New Century Careers reported that all four of their Learn & Earn participants not only completed 

the program but also transitioned into continued training opportunities in advanced 

manufacturing. This seamless handoff demonstrates how a summer experience can create a 

pipeline to industry credentials and future full-time employment. 

 

 

 

School to Work 

In June 2025, Partner4Work was awarded a School-to-Work grant, strengthening the connection 

 between education and workforce development in Pittsburgh. Through this grant, a new   

partnership with Urban Pathways Charter School is bringing career preparation directly into the 

 classroom. Working alongside the school’s computer science teacher, Partner4Work and its 

 partners are expanding the Phase 4 pre-apprenticeship program, giving students exposure to IT, 

 networking, and cybersecurity pathways while earning industry-recognized skills. 

 

The Boys & Girls Club is developing a pre-apprenticeship program in Artificial Intelligence 

 Programming that will be embedded within Urban Pathways. The application for this program 

 has been submitted for approval with the Apprenticeship and Training Office (ATO). Once 

19



approved, it will provide another structured pathway for students to gain hands-on experience, 

mentorship, and clear next steps toward postsecondary training or employment. 

Convene and influence local leaders to support data-informed 

decision-making and fieldwide innovation. 

Career Ready Allegheny 

Career Ready Allegheny (CRA) is continuing to build strong relationships with school districts 

across Allegheny County. Partner4Work staff is working closely with the Consortium for Public 

Education to convene educators four times this school year, to strengthen connections between 

schools and the workforce system. 

CRA helped connect numerous schools to the upcoming Healthcare Expo (more information 

below). Stronger relationships are also being developed with Keystone Oaks, McKeesport, 

Hampton, and Highlands. Partnerships are also expanding with Career and Technical Education 

(CTE) programs at Pittsburgh Public Schools and with PA CareerLink ®, creating additional ways 

 for students to connect with the workforce system. 

Data reflects progress: 

• 32 school districts are currently registered on CRA.

• 26 employers are registered on the platform.

• 65 educators have participated in the events.

• 148 students have completed work-based learning opportunities.

• Six schools have hosted student-led events with participation from 158 students.

These numbers show CRA’s expanding reach and its ability to bring schools, employers, and 

students together. The focus moving forward will be on deepening educator engagement,   

expanding employer partnerships, and creating even more meaningful opportunities for young 

people to connect to the workforce. 

Industry Partnerships (IP) 

• The Healthcare IP continued active recruitment of employers, training providers, and schools

for the second annual SWPA Healthcare Expo. To date, more than 1,100 students from 36

school districts in the region have registered. With 40 confirmed vendors, including several

event sponsors, we are on track to surpass last year’s total of 52 vendors.

• The Manufacturing IP continues strengthening regional collaboration with the three other

workforce boards serving Southwestern Pennsylvania. Together, we recently enrolled more

than 20 apprentices through programs with the German American Chamber of Commerce

and the National Tooling and Machining Association. These efforts support the goals of the

U.S. Department of Labor’s Building Pathways to Infrastructure grant and expand

opportunities for local workers.

• The Construction IP advanced its 4Construction model in partnership with UPMC and the A.

Philip Randolph Institute with a second UPMC Toolbox cohort at the Presby Tower site in

20



Oakland. Additionally, a third 4Construction site launched at the new “Citizen’s Live at the 

Wylie” Live Nation venue in the Lower Hill, developed in collaboration with PJ Dick and 

Pittsburgh Gateways. This program is called “Build the Beat.” These initiatives demonstrate 

Partner4Work’s ability to transform industry input into scalable, forward-thinking workforce 

solutions. 

• In the Technology IP, Partner4Work collaborated with Correlation One, a national tech

training provider, to create a data analyst apprenticeship program, which is scheduled to be

submitted for official registration on September 25, 2025. This initiative will expand training

options for regional job seekers while broadening employer engagement through Correlation

One’s national network.

Job Quality 

Through the National Fund’s Improving Workplaces in Infrastructure (NFIWI) initiative,  

Partner4Work is supporting employers as they adopt the Great Game of Business (GGOB), an 

open-book management model that builds transparency, accountability, and employee  

engagement. This summer, P4W participated in the Great Game Experience in Springfield,  

Missouri, to prepare for implementation. The team is continuing to work with Burgatory, an  

employer champion for this Job Quality initiative, and has launched efforts with Square  

Café/Title 9, while recruiting additional businesses to join. 

Important progress continues to be made through the National Fund Child Care (NFCC)   

initiative, which emphasizes the critical role of job quality in stabilizing and strengthening the  

early childhood education workforce. Our work has identified two key areas affecting job quality: 

 job expectations/performance standards and mental health. The new employee onboarding 

passport, in development through this work, supports both new educators and existing staff by 

providing clear expectations, resources, and guidance starting before their first day. The passport 

has a goal of improving retention, enhancing the educator experience, and fostering a more 

supportive workplace culture. The mental health support component connects staff to resources 

and develops Mental Health Champions (educator staff leads who help coordinate and sustain 

support efforts). This work, advanced in close collaboration with Trying Together (TT) and 

Allegheny County’s Department of Children Initiatives (DCI), ensures strong alignment across 

partners and maximizes impact for both educators and the families they serve. 

Bolster our organizational infrastructure to support innovative 

programs and sustainable impact.  

Regional & Local Planning Updates 

Partner4Work’s WIOA Regional and Local Plans have been fully approved by the PA  

Department of Labor & Industry and are now posted externally on our website.  These plans 

outline strategic vision, priorities, and partnerships for workforce development in our area,  

providing a roadmap for advancing workforce-related opportunities.  PA L&I’s approval is  

effective through June 30, 2029. 

Continuous Improvement 

21



To expand accessibility, PA CareerLink ® has deployed Integrated Language Assist (ILA) tablets 

at reception, providing on-demand translation and interpretation support for immigrant and  

refugee customers. Work is also underway to modernize the check-in process with ID/Driver’s  

License card readers, which will help reduce wait times and improve flow during peak hours and 

will help build compliance with TEGL 10-23 change 2. Together, these enhancements reflect  

P4W’s commitment to continuous improvement and to building a workforce system that is more  

inclusive, efficient, and responsive. 

Paid and Earned Media 

Workforce Development Guide 

• Pittsburgh Business Times – August 29, 2025 – link goes to a page with a link to each of the

stories in the Workforce Development Guide.

 https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/02/workforce-guide-cant-afford-

lose-local.html  

Stories Mentioning Partner4Work 

• Pittsburgh Business Times – July 29, 2025

 Closing the Gap https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/labor-gap-

adult-literacy-pennsylvania-economic.html 

• Pittsburgh Post-Gazette – July 20, 2025

 Editorial – What Does Pittsburgh’s Future Hold? https://www.post-

gazette.com/opinion/editorials/2025/07/20/mccormick-summit-economic-development-

cmu-ai-energy-workforce/stories/202507200074  

• Pittsburgh Post-Gazette – July 15, 2025

 Heinz History Center to add six-story wing in first major expansion in decades - The 

Pittsburgh Planning Commission on Tuesday also heard about a new youth sports 

complex, more affordable housing and major zoning changes. (P4W mentioned in section 

about new housing)  https://www.post-

gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/15/heinz-history-center-

expansion/stories/202507150089  

PA CareerLink ® Awareness Day/Job Fair 

• WPXI – September 9, 2025

 Local organizations hosting large hiring event in Monroeville 

https://www.wpxi.com/news/local/local-organizations-hosting-large-hiring-event-

monroeville/L6OUKAKMQRDHDNOFNMAS6BW7ZQ/  

Bakery Square Expansion 

• Pittsburgh Post-Gazette – July 30, 2025

 A Set of Zoning Changes https://www.post-

gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/29/hazelwood-green-pittsburgh-steelers-

oakland-housing-planning-commission/stories/202507290090 

22

https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/02/workforce-guide-cant-afford-lose-local.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/02/workforce-guide-cant-afford-lose-local.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/labor-gap-adult-literacy-pennsylvania-economic.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/labor-gap-adult-literacy-pennsylvania-economic.html
https://www.post-gazette.com/opinion/editorials/2025/07/20/mccormick-summit-economic-development-cmu-ai-energy-workforce/stories/202507200074
https://www.post-gazette.com/opinion/editorials/2025/07/20/mccormick-summit-economic-development-cmu-ai-energy-workforce/stories/202507200074
https://www.post-gazette.com/opinion/editorials/2025/07/20/mccormick-summit-economic-development-cmu-ai-energy-workforce/stories/202507200074
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/15/heinz-history-center-expansion/stories/202507150089
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/15/heinz-history-center-expansion/stories/202507150089
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/15/heinz-history-center-expansion/stories/202507150089
https://www.wpxi.com/news/local/local-organizations-hosting-large-hiring-event-monroeville/L6OUKAKMQRDHDNOFNMAS6BW7ZQ/
https://www.wpxi.com/news/local/local-organizations-hosting-large-hiring-event-monroeville/L6OUKAKMQRDHDNOFNMAS6BW7ZQ/
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/29/hazelwood-green-pittsburgh-steelers-oakland-housing-planning-commission/stories/202507290090
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/29/hazelwood-green-pittsburgh-steelers-oakland-housing-planning-commission/stories/202507290090
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/29/hazelwood-green-pittsburgh-steelers-oakland-housing-planning-commission/stories/202507290090


• Pittsburgh Post-Gazette – July 22, 2025

 City Council Greenlights Zoning Changes for $500M Bakery Square Expansion 

https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/22/pittsbugh-city-council-

greenlights-zoning-500-million-bakery-square/stories/202507220094 

• Pittsburgh Post-Gazette – July 8, 2025

 $500M Bakery Square expansion moves closer to reality https://www.post-

gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/08/bakery-square-expansion-pittsburgh-

walnut-capital/stories/202507080071 

Awards 

• Pittsburgh Business Times – September 10, 2025

 Leadership Pittsburgh announces LP XLII cohort (Susie Puskar listed) 

https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/09/leadership-pittsburgh-lp-xlii-

cohort.html 

• New Pittsburgh Courier – September 10, 2025

 Men of Excellence Awardees (Maurice Walker, P4W’s Industry Liaison, Construction 

listed) - https://newpittsburghcourier.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2025/09/9.10.25-

FULL.pdf 

• Pittsburgh Business Times – September 9, 2025

 C-Suite Award Winners (Rob Cherry listed)

https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/c-suite-awards-2025-

announcement.html 

Partner4Work Policy Changes for Board Approval (September 2025) 

Policy Updates 

Gift 

Acceptance 

Policy 

Policy Purpose: To ensure alignment with fundraising and to establish clear guidelines for 

how an organization receives donations, we have developed a Gift Acceptance Policy to 

aid staff when accepting or rejecting donor gifts. It ensures accepted donations align 

mission and values, provides clear guidance to staff on how to process and evaluate 

donations, ensures compliance with the various laws, aides donor relations by providing 

transparency, and mitigates risks when a donation may impact the organization and its 

reputation negatively. 

Recommended Changes for Board Approval (September 2025): 

● Partner4Work staff recommends approving this new Gift Acceptance Policy.

P4W Gift Acceptance Policy for Board Approval 

23

https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/22/pittsbugh-city-council-greenlights-zoning-500-million-bakery-square/stories/202507220094
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/22/pittsbugh-city-council-greenlights-zoning-500-million-bakery-square/stories/202507220094
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/08/bakery-square-expansion-pittsburgh-walnut-capital/stories/202507080071
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/08/bakery-square-expansion-pittsburgh-walnut-capital/stories/202507080071
https://www.post-gazette.com/business/development/2025/07/08/bakery-square-expansion-pittsburgh-walnut-capital/stories/202507080071
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/09/leadership-pittsburgh-lp-xlii-cohort.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/09/09/leadership-pittsburgh-lp-xlii-cohort.html
https://newpittsburghcourier.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2025/09/9.10.25-FULL.pdf
https://newpittsburghcourier.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2025/09/9.10.25-FULL.pdf
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/c-suite-awards-2025-announcement.html
https://www.bizjournals.com/pittsburgh/news/2025/07/29/c-suite-awards-2025-announcement.html
https://trwib.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/Governance/EZ671QGG0r9Il2dS87Uywj4BZ-l-y4vsFAsOsw2G7p5C_A?e=IOaQdV


Employee 

Handbook 

Policy Purpose: The employee handbook serves as a comprehensive guide that 

communicates company policies, procedures, and expectations to employees while also 

protecting the organization legally. It introduces the company’s mission, vision, values, 

and culture, helping employees feel connected and aligned with organizational core values. 

By documenting rules on workplace conduct, benefits, attendance, and performance, the 

handbook ensures consistency, fairness, and accountability across the organization. It also 

acts as a quick reference for common questions, clarifies employee rights and 

responsibilities, and supports managers in applying policies uniformly, ultimately fostering 

trust, transparency, and a strong workplace culture. 

Recommended Changes for Board Approval (September 2025): 

● Partner4Work staff recommends approving the following handbook changes:

o Minor Changes to sections: 1.2 introduction; 2.2 commitment to equal

opportunity; 3.4 PII; 6.1 record keeping; 6.5 in case of a pandemic; 7.5

parental leave; 9.7 cell phone usage; 9.11 social media; 9.16 retirement;

9.17 layoff; 9.18 progressive discipline

o Changes/additions to sections: 4.3 paid time off; 6.2 standard work week;

6.3 working from home; 6.4 flex time; 9.2 personal appearance; 9.3 virtual

meeting guidelines; 9.8 computer and email usage; 9.13 solicitations; 10

grievances.

24



86.5%

73.1%
65.2%

25


	BB - Front Cover Sept 2025 (1)
	BB Roster Sept. 2025 
	BB TOC
	P4W Board Agenda 9_26_25
	Minutes of P4W Board meeting 06.27.25 (1)
	Executive Committee Minutes from June 13, 2025 (1)
	P4W Gift Acceptance Policy for Board Approval
	Dashboard 6.30.25 - Updated version
	Board Book Program Updates September 2025
	PY24 Program Data Supplement



